
 
                         Dover/Kent County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
                                        P.O. Box 383, Dover, Delaware  19903 (302) 760-2713 FAX: (302) 739-6340 
                                        http://doverkentmpo.org 
  

 
DOVER/KENT COUNTY MPO TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF DECEMBER 12, 2007 
 
 
Technical Advisory Committee Representatives attending:    
Scott Koenig, City of Dover/Public Works (Chair)   David Hugg, Town of Smyrna 
David Edgell, Office of State Planning (Vice-chair)  Tim Riley, Kent Conservation District 
Mark Glaze for Greg Oliver, DelDOT Planning    Suzan Doordan, Transp. Mgmt. Assoc. DE 
Mary Ellen Gray for Sarah Keifer, Kent County Planning   Phil Wheeler, DNREC 
Cathy Smith, Delaware Transit Corporation   Louis Lombard, Dover Air Force Base 
Tashia Clemons, Federal Highway Admin.   Gary Norris, City of Milford  
    
Members not attending: 
Anne Marie Townshend, City of Dover/Planning/Insp.   Milton Melendez, DE Dept. of Agriculture 
Rick Crawford, Norfolk Southern    Florence Bicchetti, Federal Transit Admin. 
Jack Taylor, DE Motor Transport Assoc.     Heather Keegan, DE Economic Dev. Office 
 
Non-members attending: 
Bob Preston, DAFB Consultant     Richard Kautz, Sussex County Planning 
Tammy Ford, RideShare Delaware (PB)    Juanita Wieczoreck, D/KC MPO Staff 
Catherine Samardza, D/KC MPO Staff     
 
1. Introduction of Members & Guests 
 
2. Public Comments 
 
3. ACTION ITEM: Approval of Agenda 
 
MOTION By Ms. Smith to approve the agenda.  Seconded by Mr. Lombard.  Motion carried. 
 
4. ACTION ITEM:  Approval of Minutes/October 10, 2007 Meeting 
 
MOTION By Mr. Wheeler to approve the minutes.  Seconded by Mr. Glaze.  Motion carried. 
 
5. ACTION ITEM:  Draft DE 8 Concept Plan and Operations Study – J. Wieczoreck  
 
Ms. Wieczoreck reviewed the history of the project and its goals.  She then noted the highlights of the report, which had  
been sent to the committee members for review.  She noted that SHPO had questions concerning the cultural resource  
inventory and impact section, and that the consultant was working with them to make clarifications. 
 
Mr. Glaze noted that Mr. Aglio of DelDOT planning had commented on the report, suggesting that a hierarchy be  
established for decision making:  Pedestrian v. Bicycle and Transit v. Transportation. 
 
Mr. Edgell noted that he would like the idea of a package of solutions and projects for the entire area rather than individual  
projects.  Ms. Wieczoreck  noted that it can be presented that way but that the final decision is not up to the MPO. 
 
MOTION By Mr. Lombard to recommend that Council adopt the DE 8 Concept Plan.  Seconded by Mr. Wheeler 
  Motion carried. 
 
6. ACTION ITEM:  Draft FY 2009-2012 Capital Transportation Program – J. Wieczoreck  
 
Ms. Wieczoreck reviewed the list of projects for the 2009-2012 CTP.  There were some questions and general discussion  
concerning the projects.  Ms. Clemons then announced that the MPO Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) was not  
SAFETEA-LU compliant.  After further discussion it appeared there was some confusion concerning the Statewide TIP and  
projects that would trigger a conformity analysis or changes to the Long Range Transportation Plan.  Ms. Wieczoreck  
assured Ms. Clemons and the other committee members that none of these projects will do that, and that the MPO is  



 
                         Dover/Kent County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
                                        P.O. Box 383, Dover, Delaware  19903 (302) 760-2713 FAX: (302) 739-6340 
                                        http://doverkentmpo.org 
  

 
SAFETEA-LU compliant.   
 
MOTION By Mr. Glaze to recommend that Council adopt the 2009-2012 list of projects.   Seconded by Mr. Norris. 
  Motion carried. 
 
7. PRESENTATION:  Long Range Regional Transportation Plan/Kent County Comprehensive Plan Update 
 7.1 Land Use Plan Update – Mary Ellen Gray, Kent County Planning 
  
Ms. Gray gave a Powerpoint presentation reviewing the work done to date on the Kent County Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. 
Norris asked if the County was keeping track of the number of occupancy permits by year.  Ms. Gray said that 1,000 
building permits were issued, but that she did not know the number of occupancy permits.  She also reported that this was a 
25% reduction from previous years.  Mr. Norris asked if there was a list of developers, and Ms. Gray said that such a list 
was kept.  Mr. Koenig asked about the “sunset” provision on subdivisions (no activity 5 years from application would void 
the application).  Ms. Gray said that only one or two subdivisions have ever been cancelled, because developers will do a 
minimum amount of work and then put the project on hold again. 
 
Ms. Dennis asked about the condition of roads after the developers were finished, citing her road as an example of a road 
that is in worse condition after the developers were finished.  Mr. Wheeler felt that the County could not keep adding lots 
without improving roadways.  Ms. Gray noted that the County could only “sell” so much maintenance to the developers.  
Mr. Wheeler said that he believed the County should consider that before the subdivisions are approved.  Mr. Koenig asked 
if DelDOT had considered not taking the roads and leaving them with the County; Ms. Wieczoreck noted that the County 
did not want the responsibility of road maintenance.  Mr. Koenig felt that the County should not blame someone else for 
road conditions when County Land Use is the problem.  Ms. Gray said that she would take these comments back to the 
County. 
 
Ms. Gray noted that the County is modifying the growth zone; Mr. Norris felt that this would create sprawl in certain areas 
on the map displayed.  Ms. Gray said that the goal was to preserve rural character.  Mr. Norris stated that it was still sprawl. 
 Mr. Koenig asked if there was a report on State-level support in the growth zone area. Mr. Edgell said that his office was 
preparing that report.  Mr. Koenig asked if that assessment would be part of the Comprehensive Plan documentation, and 
Mr. Wheeler asked if the Plan could be paid for.  Mr. Edgell reported that all Comprehensive Plans going through the State 
process before certification were required to provide a financial aspect, but that collecting all the necessary information was 
not as easy as one would think.  He still felt that this was better than the previous growth zone, and that was better than 
what came before.  He noted that he liked this plan. 
 
There was some further discussion.  Mr. Koenig felt that the County would look at this differently if they had to maintain 
the roads.  He felt the parameters should be changed.  He said that everyone blamed DelDOT but in most cases they are not 
the ones causing the problems. 
 
There was also some discussion concerning annexation.  Mr. Edgell announced that he and Ms. Gray would be meeting 
with municipalities to discuss annexation issues.  Mr. Hugg noted that Smyrna would be meeting with them in January. 
 

7.2 Long-Range Regional Transportation Plan Update –  
J. Wieczoreck, D/KC MPO and M. Glaze, DelDOT Planning 

 
A Powerpoint presentation was shown illustrating work on the RTP update that is also being used for the mobility element 
for the County Comprehensive Plan.  These findings were developed using the employment and population projection data. 
 It was noted that the modeling shows a slight improvement in emissions.  DelDOT ran the TRANPLAN travel demand 
model to compare a scenario based on the population distribution recently adopted by the MPO Council to a scenario in 
which more population is shifted to the town areas in the County’s proposed land use map. 
 
8. Member Agency Reports: Due to time constraints there were no agency reports  
  
 
 
 
9. Staff Report – J. Wieczoreck 



 
                         Dover/Kent County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
                                        P.O. Box 383, Dover, Delaware  19903 (302) 760-2713 FAX: (302) 739-6340 
                                        http://doverkentmpo.org 
  

 
9.1 UPWP Progress & Financial Reports 
9.2 Correspondence & Publications/Reports 

 
Ms. Wieczoreck reported that there are still issues with the Population & Employment Projections. Mr. Waltz will be 
meeting with The City of Dover to discuss the 3,000 people reported on the Garrison Tract.  The University of Delaware is 
also working on this. 
 
Ms. Wieczoreck announced that Parsons Brinckerhoff is the consultant working on the Regional Transportation Plan 
Update.  She asked for volunteers for a working group to assist in this project.  Mr. Edgell, Mr. Koenig (with Ms. 
Townshend as his alternate), Ms. Gray and Ms. Dennis agreed to be members of the group.  Mr. Wheeler said that he would 
ask at DNREC for a person to serve on the working  group.  Ms. Wieczoreck noted that she expects the document to be 
finalized before Fall 2008. 
 
10. Next Meeting:  February 13, 2008 
 
MOTION By Mr. Edgell to adjourn the meeting.  Seconded by Mr. Glaze.  Motion carried. 


